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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

460, FIE, Patparganj Industrial Area., Delhi -110 092
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
T0
THE MEMBERS OF M/S GDN ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the Standalone financial statements of M/S GDN ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED,
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, Cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements
including a summary of the material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025, its profit, changes in Equity and its
Cash flows for the year ended on that date. :

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters. C
Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company as it is

an unlisted company.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s
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Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon:

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
___selection and_application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, 1mplementat10n and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The boards of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
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misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management. '

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and-timing-of- the-audit-and-significant-audit - findings;- including any-significant-deficiencies-in-internal-
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020’ (“the order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub section 11 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, and on the
basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according
to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure A statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.
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(d)

(e)

¢)

®

(b)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards (‘Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3lsf March, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
‘Annexure B’

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, we report that section 197 is not
applicable on private company. Hence reporting as per section 197(16) is not required.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Standalone Financial Statements. Refer to Note 36 to the Standalone Financial Statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

V. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
‘guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and




vi. Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

vii. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of the
provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

viii. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

For Naveen Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 007238N

Date: 19.05.2025
Place: Delhi
UDIN: 1S 0 3LSQ 3 N R T B\YWhoY



ANNEXURE A CONTAINING REPORT ON
MATTERS REQUIRED BY CARO, 2020

Re: GDN ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

Referred to in paragraph 5 of our report of even date

(i) (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any Intangible assets and accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the
order is not applicable to the company. »

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property,
plant and equipment by which all Property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner over a
period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain Property, plant and equipment were
verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the Company, the company does not have the immovable property.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (mcludmg
Right-of-use assets) or Intangible assets or both during the year.

“(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(i) (a) The Management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during
the year. According, to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, we are of the opinion that the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate, having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. No
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on physical
verification as compared with books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits during the year,
reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(iif) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made investments, provided guarantee, granted loans and
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies during the year.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or security as specified under
Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company has not provided any guarantee or security as



specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the Company has complied with the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to loans given and investments made.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted any
deposits nor the amounts which are deemed to be deposit during the year and further the Company had no
unclaimed deposits at the beginning of the year within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Hence reporting under clause 3(v) of the.
Order are not applicable.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of Company’s products/ services. We have broadly reviewed the
books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules,
2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
subsection (1) of Section 148 of the Act in respect of Company’s products/services and are of the opinion
that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained by the Company.
However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.

(vii) (2) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, cess and
other material statutory dues, as applicable to the Company, have generally been regularly deposited to the
appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the
yearend for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. The operations of the
Company; during-the year do-not-give rise-to-liabilities of sales tax;-service tax; duty-of excise-and value-
added tax.

(b) Detail of statutory dues referred to in clause (a) above, which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities as at 31 March, 2025 on account of disputes are given below: -

Name of the | Nature of | Amount (In | Amount paid | Period to | Forum where |
statute dues Rs.) under Protest | which the | dispute is
amount pending
relates
Central Sales | Sales Tax 43,21,626 - 2017-18 | Deputy
Tax Act, 1956 Commissioner
(Appeal)
| |
|
Central Sales | Sales Tax 4,46,134 44,613 | 2017-18 | Deputy
Tax Act, 1956 | Commissioner
(Appeal)
. |
Goods and | Goods and 3,67,33,018 18,36,651 2017-18 | The
Services Tax | Services Tax Commissioner
Act, 2017 | (Appeal)

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions relating to
previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).
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(ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender
during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has not been
declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans availed by
the Company were applied for the purposes for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that funds raised on
short term basis have not been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

() In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has not raised
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further publick offer
(including debt instruments) during the year.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally). Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (x)(b) of the
order are not applicable. '

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
period covered by our audit.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,
during the year and up to the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xii)(a)-(c) of the
Order are not applicable.-

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the
requisite details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required by the applicable Indian
accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according‘ to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has-
an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports issued to the Company till date, covering the period

under audit.
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(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its
directors, hence provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the Group
does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

(Xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii)
of the Order is not applicable.

. (xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
-ageing-and-expected dates of realization-of financial assets and-payment of financial liabilities; other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any project.
Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For Naveen Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN -~ 007238N

e -
Date: 19.05.2025 / Nave

Place: Delhi Paftne
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) '

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GDN ENTERPRISES
PRIVATE LIMITED. (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of interrial control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our_responsibility_is_to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial _controls over financial _
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
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1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opihion

In our_opinion, the Company_has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system

over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating

effectively as at March 31, 2025, bascd on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Naveen Associates

/;\/m Chartered Accountants
%3\ FRN - 007238N

Date: 19.05.2025

Place: Delhi
UDIN: .S O 81582 RN R Ry M.No! 082583
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GDN Enterprises Private Limited

CIN: U51909DL2010PTC209321

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(All amounts in ¥ in lakh unless otherwise stated )

. As at As at
Particulars Note No. Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
(1) Non - Current Assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 3,113.40 2,569.27

(b) Right to use Assets 28 791.45 -

(¢) Financial assets

(i) Other financial asset 4 110.90 185.94
(d) Deferred tax assets (net} 5 165.24 14.91
(e) Other non - current assets 6 4,680.57 1,700.00
Total Non - Current Assets (A) 8,861.56 4,470.12
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 7 17,251.60 25,106.72
(b) Financial assets 8
(i) Trade receivables 8 (a) 24.217.14 14,146.98
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 (b) 101.91 2,404.09
(iif) Bank balances other than (ii) above 8(c) 109.40 -
(iv) Loans 8 (d) - 18.87
(c) Other current assets 9 5,768.55 6,237.45
Total Current Assets (B} 47,448.60 47,914.10
Total Assets (A+B) 56,310.17 52,384.22
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
|~ (a) Equity share capital U 471.54 251.00
(h) Other equity 11 9.994.67 3,048.19)
Total Equity (C) 10,466.61 (2,797.19)
Liabilities
(1) Non - current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12 1,249.69 4,994.41
(ia) Lease Habilities 28 768.95 -
(b Provisions 13 11.57 8.48
Total Non - Current Liabilities (D) 2,030.21 5,002.89
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities 14
(i) Borrowings 14 (2) 2,236.33 5,176.88
(ia) Lease liabilities 28 52.18 -
(ii) Trade Payables 14 (b)
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 129.66 37.12
) lota.l outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 40347.00 44,544.65
enterprises.
(iii) Other financial liabilities 14 (c) 75.36 75.36
(b) Other current liabilities 15 118.46 248.84
(c) Provisions 16 312.42 4.77
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 541.84 90.89
Total Current Liabilities (E) 43,813.33 50,178.51
Total Liabilities (D+E) 45,843.54 55,181.41
Total Equity and Liabilities 56,310.15 52,384.22

See accompanying notes forming part of the standalone Ind AS financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Naveen Associates

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number : 007238N

Partner
M.No. 082

Date : May 19, 2025
Place : New Delhi

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
GDN Enterprises Private Limited

ok Gupta
Director
DIN : 00277434

Deepesh Gupta
Director
DIN:- 00469737
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GDN Enterprises Private Limited
CIN: U51909DL2010PTC209321

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in ¥ in lakh unless otherwise stated )

. Year ended Year ended
Particnlars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1 |Revenue from operations 17 1,10,993.23 48,769.14
I |Other income 18 225.77 281.01
III |Total income (FH1T) 1,11,219.00 49,050.16
IV |Expenses
- Cost of materials consumed 19 96,787.93 41,891.33
- Purchases/ Cost of stock in trade 20 6,930.60 3,821.36
- Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, and finished goods 21 (5,610.48) (3,242.00)
- Employee Benefits Expense 22 283.57 18.11
- Finance Cost 23 879.35 580.22
- Depreciation and Amortization Expense 24 561.64 205.93
- Other Expenses 25 6,121.80 4,560.25
Total Expenses (IV) 1,05,954.41 47,835.19
V  |Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (III-1V) 5,264.59 1,214.97
VI |Exceptional Items - -
VII |Profit before tax (V-VI) 5,264.59 1.214.97
VII |Tax expense: 5
(1) Current Tax (746.95) (90.89)
(2) Deferred Tax 150.33 (26.40)
(3) Adjustment of tax related to earlier years o 90.89 -
IX |Profit for the vear (VII+VIII) 4,758.86 1,097.67
X |Other comprehensive income/ (loss)
A. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss :
= Remedasurement gain of the defined benefit plan —35— (1:06) -
— Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
B. Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss :
— Net movement in effective portion of cash flow hedge reserve - -
— Income tax related to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
X1 |Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the vear (net of tax) (A+B) (1.06) -
XII |Total comprehensive income (IX + XT) 4,757.80 1,097.67
XII |Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation) : 26
Basic 136.95 43.73
Diluted 136.95 43.73

See accompanying notes forming part of the standalone Ind AS financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Naveen Associates

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number : 007238N

Date : May 19, 2025
Place : New Delhi

Ashok Gupta
Director
DIN : 00277434

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
GDN Enterprises Private Limited

Deepish Gupta
Director
DIN:- 00469737




GDN Enterprises Private Limited

CIN: U51909DL2010PTC209321

Standalone Statement of Cash flow for the period ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ in lakh unless otherwise stated |

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 5.264.59 1.214.97
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 481.29 20593
Depreciation of Rou Asset 80.35 -
Irrecoverable Balances written off (net) 18.87
Expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables 38.98 -
Provision of Gratuity 1.90 0.89
Interest expenses on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 879.35 578.85
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) 305.32 -
Excess liabilities written back (81.99) -
Interest income (9.06) (12.45)
1.715.01 773.22
Operating profit before working capital changes 6.979.60 1.988.18
Changes in working capital:
Adjustments for (in in ing assets:
Trade receivables (10,109.14) (12,889.21)
Inventories 7,855.12 | (23,636.26)
Other non current financial assets 75.04 | (3.04)
Other current assets 468.90 (7,515.19)
Other non current assets (2,980457)| -
Adji for i in operating liabilities:
Trade payables (4,328.35)' 41,710.79
Other Non current provision 0.13 | 089
Other current liabilities {130.38)/ 67.48
Current provisions 307.65 .
Other financial labilities - 88.32
! 18.841.60| 12.176.22)
Cash generated from operations | 11.862.00) (188.04)
Direct laxes paid (net) 1 1205.111 -
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) | — 2,067.114 1188.04)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
?ayme‘nt for property, plafn and equipment, capital work in progress, intangible assets and (1,025.42) (2,350.67)
intangible asset under development |
Right to use Asset {871.80)/ .
Interest received 9.06 12.45
Proceeds from fixed deposits with original maturities more than 3 months {net} (109.40)
Net cash (used) in investing activities (B) 11.997.56) 12.338.22)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Tssue of Equity share capital 220.94
Security Premium Received 8,285.06 -
Proceeds from / (repayment) of Long Term borrowings (nef) (3,744.72) (467.74)
Proceeds from / (repayment) of short-term borrowings (net) (2,940.55) 4,988.96
Lease Liability 821.13 <
Finance costs paid 1879.35) (578.85)
Net cash (used) in financing activities (C) 1,762.51 394238
Net (decrease)fincrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 12.302.16) 1.416.12
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2.404.08 987.96
Cash and cash egvivalents at the end of the year* 101.89 2.404.08
* Comptises:
Cash in hand 0.03 .10
Balances with banks :
- In current accounts 101.88 2403.98
101.91 2,404.08

Notes:

ii. Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow.

As per our report of even date

For Naveen Associates

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number : 007238N

Naveen Jain
Partner
M.No. 08258,

Date : May 19, 2025
Place : New Delhi

iii. Figures for the previous year have been regrouped wherever considered necessary.
iv. Current taxes paid are treated as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investing and financing activities.

See accompanying notes forming part of standalone Ind AS financial statements

i. The statement of cash flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 on ‘Statements of Cash Flows’.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
GDN Enterprises Private Limited

Ashok Gupta Deepesh Gupta
Director Director
DIN : 00277434 DIN:- 00469737




Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

Notes to the Financial Statements
1. Corporate Information

GDN Enterprises Private Limited (“the Company”) is a private company incorporated on 12th Oct 2010. The
company is engaged mainly in the business of manufacturing of electronic goods.

The Standalone financial statements have been approved and adopted by the board in their mecting held on May
19, 2025.

2. Material Accounting Policies
2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, read with Section 133 of Companies Act 2013.

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

a. Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;
b. Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest Lakh
(Rs. 00,000) except when otherwise indicated.

2.2 Summary of Material Accounting Policies
2.2.1 Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IndAS recognition and measurement principles and,
in particular, making the critical accounting judgments require the use of estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Management reviews its estimates on an
ongoing basis using currently available information. Changes in facts and circumstances or obtaining new
information or more experience may result in revised estimates, and actual results could differ from those
estimates.

2.2.2 Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current or Non-Current

The Company presents current and non-current assets, and current and non-current liabilities, as separate
classification in its statement of financial position on the basis of realization of assets.

An asset is classified as current when it is:
e expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle,
e  held primarily for the purpose of trading,
e expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

A liability is classified as current when:
e itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle,
e it is held primarily for the purpose of trading,
e it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

¢ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities.

The operaling cycle 1s (he lime between [he acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and
cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.2.3 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. The Company recognizes
revenue when it transfers control over a product to a customer. Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer (transaction price) net of variable consideration. Revenue is measured at
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of
payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that
it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements
as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

Goods and services Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on
value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized.

Sale of goods.
The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of mobile handsets, accessories and other electronic items.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the Material risks and rewards of ownership in the goods are
transferred to the buyer as per the terms of the contract, there is no continuing managerial involvement with the
goods and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. The Company retains no effective control of the goods
transferred to a degree usually associated with ownership and no Material uncertainty exists regarding the amount
of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods. Revenue is measured at fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any trade discounts, volume rebates and any taxes or
duties collected on behalf of the government which are levied on sales such as sales tax, value added tax, etc.

Interest Income

For all financial assets measured at amortized cost interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Others

Other incomes are recognized on accrual basis.

2.2.4 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost includes
all related costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of the asset.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is Material in relation to the total cost of
the item is depreciated separately. Except for land, property, plant and equipment is depreciated using the written
down value method over the useful lives of the related assets as presented in Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013.

Major improvements, which add to productive capacity or extend the life of an asset, are capitalized, while repairs
and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Where a property, plant and equipment comprises major components
having different useful lives, these components are accounted for as separate items.The depreciation expense is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the property,
plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment under construction is recorded as capital work- in-progress until it is ready for its
intended use; thereafter it is transferred to the related class of property, plant and equipment and depreciated over
its-estimated-useful-life- Interest incurred-during-construction is-capitalized if the borrowing cost is directly
attributable to the construction.




Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of a property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of
profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if expectations differ from previous estimates. Depreciation methods applied to property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each reporting date and changed if there has been a Material change in the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

The estimated useful lives are as mentioned below:

| Computer 3 Years

fpll;i;;;; Fixtures oveas
V'l;hiclcs; | 8 Years
Office Equipment _;fﬁ :EY;ars_iﬁ -
Plant & Machinery 1 "’g“ 15 Year‘s“-

2.2.5 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and
expenditure is recognized in the statement of profit or loss when it is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite. Intangible assets are amottized over their useful
economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are
treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognized.

Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation is provided on written down value method over the useful life of assets as assessed by the
management and the same is similar to the useful lives as prescribed in Part- C of schedule II to The Companies
Act, 2013. Amortisation is charged on pro-rata basis for asset purchased/sold during the year.

2.2.6 Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or Cash Generating Unit (CGU)’s
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does




Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are prepared separately
for each of the Company’s CGU to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations are generally covering a period of five years. A long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to
project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

2.2.7 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

i. Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, fair
value through OCI or at amortized cost as appropriate. The Company determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of assets not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

The Company has the following financial assets in its statement of financial position

¢ Investments

e Cash

e Bank Balances

e  Trade Receivables
e Loans

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as described below:
Financial assets at FVTPL or FVTOCI

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held-for-
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value presented as finance income (positive net changes in fair value) or finance costs (negative net changes in
fair value) in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial assets upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to
P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Financial assets at amortised cost

This category is the most relevant to the Company All Trade and Other Receivables, Loans and Advances falt
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using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included in finance income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in cost of sales or other operating expenses for
receivables. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

o  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement, and either the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The objective of the company in recognising the impairment allowance is to recognise lifetime expected credit

_losses for all financial instruments for which there have been Material increases in credit risk since initial

recognition — whether assessed on an individual or collective basis — considering all reasonable and supportable
information, including that which is forward-looking.

Credit Losses are the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at
the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets). Expected Credit Losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective
risks of a default occurring as the weights.

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on a financial asset that is measured at
amortized cost at each reporting date, at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on
that financial instrument has increased Materially since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the
company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead
of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the company compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and consider reasonable and supportable information,
that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of Material increases in credit risk since initial
recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased Materially
since initial recognition if it is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.

If, at the reporting date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased Materially since initial
recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-
month expected credit losses. For Trade receivables the company always measure the loss allowance at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing Material
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Company first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually Material, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
Material. If the Company determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether Material or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that arc individually assessed for impairment
and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The Company measures expected credit losses of a financial instrument in a way that reflects an unbiased and
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money; and the reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the gross carrying
amount using the effective rate of interest unless the financial instrument is credit-impaired in which case the
interest income is recognised on reduced carrying amount. The interest income is recorded as part of finance
revenue in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans, together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Company. If, in a subsequent year, the amount
of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account.
If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to profit or loss.

ii. Financial Liabilities
The Company has the following financial liabilities in its statement of financial position
e _ Borrowings

o Trade payables
e  Other Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held-for-trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near
term. Gains or losses on liabilities held-for-trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date
of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS109 are satisfied. The Company has not designated any financial
liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate method
(EIR) amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

This category generally applies to notes payable, short-term loans and overdrafts.

iii. Offsetting of financial instruments

FRN:0072
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset with the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position only if there is a current enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and an intent
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

iv. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair values of the financial instruments are not
materially different at the reporting date.

2.2.8 Cash and Bank Balances

Cash and Bank Balances in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and fixed
deposits with banks, which are subject to an inMaterial risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits
with original maturity of less than 3 months, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral
part of the Company’s cash management.

2.2.9 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an assect that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period for which
they are incurred.

2.2.10 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as a finance cost.

2.2.11 Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the company in exchange for service rendered by
employees. Employee benefits include: short-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits and other long-
term employee benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits
Short- term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settied wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amount expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution plan. The company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The company recognises contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related services. If the contribution payable
to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability

After deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for
services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the
prepayment will lead to a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.
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Defined Contribution Plan

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into
a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund
does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

When an employee has rendered service during the year, the company recognises the contribution payable to a
defined contribution plan in exchange for that service as a liability (accrued expense) and as an expense.

Defined Benefit Plan

Defined benefit plans are those plans that provide guaranteed benefits to certain categories of employees, either
by way of contractual obligations or through a collective agreement.

The company operates unfunded defined benefit plan. The cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method; With actuarial Valuations being carried out at’each fiscal year end. The obligation
recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position represents the present value of the defined benefit
obligation.

Current service cost, which is the increase of the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from the
employee service in the current period, is recorded as an expense as part of cost of sales and selling, general and
administrative expenses in the statement of profit and loss. The interest cost, which is the change during the period
in the defined benefit liability that arises from the passage of time, is recognized as part of financing costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and
loss. Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in
retained eaming in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. Changes in the present value of
the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss as past service cost.

2.2.12 Foreign Currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the company’s functional
currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot
rate at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency spot
rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognized in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss
on change in fair value in the item.

2.2.13 Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or pald to the
taxation_authoritie: Th ta e I e




Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount for financial reporting purpose at the reporting date. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
liabilities are off set where the company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.2.14 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories, comprise costs of purchase
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present condition and location. Costs of purchased
7 inyentg_ry_ar_e determined after deducting rebates and discounts.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.2.15 Segment Reporting
Identification of segments

The Company is operating in single business i.e., manufacturing of electronic goods; and single geographical
segment i.e., Domestic.

Allocation of common costs

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each segment to
the total common costs.

Unallocated items

Unallocated items include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any business
segment.

Segment accounting policies

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing
and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker being director of the company. The director assesses the financial performance and position of the
company as a whole, and makes strategic decisions.

2.2.16 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares.
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2.2.17 Contingent Liabilities/Assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligation that arise from past events but their existence
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the company or where any obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources
or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made.

The contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. And entity shall not recognise
a contingent asset unless the recovery is virtually certain.

For Naveen Associates For GDN ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 007238N

Navee i . Ashok Gupta Deepesh Gupta
Partfier % Delhi Director Director
M. No. 082583 %/'ed ACcOS DIN: 00277434 DIN: 00469737

Date: May 19, 2025
Place: New Delhi
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GDN Enterprises Private Limited

CIN: U51909DL2010PTC209321

Notes to Standalone Financial St: for the year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in T in lakh unless otherwise stated )

4. Other Non Current Financial Assets

Particulars

Deferred tax relates to the following:

g As at As at
Particulars 2024]
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(ii) Other financial assets
Security Deposits*
Security deposits - Unsecured and considered good 87.91 61.57
Security deposits - Unsecured and considered doubtful - -
87.91 61.57
Less: provision for doubtful deposits - -
87.91 61.57
Bank deposits with remaining maturity more than 12 months 12.50 114.40
Interest accrued on deposits 10.49 9.97
Total | 110.90 185.94
* Security deposits includes deposits given to various public authorities such department of Sales Tax and VAT of different states and do not have any fixed maturity periods.
5. Current Tax and Deferred Tax
(i) Income tax exp recognised in the of Profit and Loss
Particulars As at As at
. _ _ March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(A) Current Tax:
— in respect of current year 746.95 90.89
— in respect of earlier years {90.891 -
Total (A) 656.06 90.89
(B) Deferred Tax:
— in respect o_fcuirin_t year (150.33) 26.40
— in respect of earlier years_ - -
Total (B} 1150.33) 26.40
Total income tax expense/(income) (A+B) 505.73 117.29
(iii) Reconciliation of income tax exp and the ing profit iplied by C y’s d ic tax rate:
Particulars EXE As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit before tax as per the Statement of Profit and Loss 5,264.59 1,214.97
Income tax expense calculated at 25.168% 1,324.99 305.78
Income tax impact on disallowances of items of permanent nature {1.91) 0.77
Others 1817.33) 1189.261
Income tax as per (i) above 505.75 117.29
*Carried forward Business losses and unabsorbed depreciation utilised to the extent of profit
Deferred tax expense/(income):
As at As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (129.17) (3.57)
Provision For Doubtful Debts {9.81) 18.48
Provision For Gratuity {2.91) -
Provision For Bonus (0.84) -
Right to use assets and Lease Lability (7.47) -
Others 10.13) -
Deferred tax /G 1150.33) 14.91
Reconciliation of deferred tax asset/(liabilities) (net):
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31. 2024
Opening balance 14.91 41.31
Tax income/iexpense | during the period recognised in profit or loss 150.33 126.40)
Closing balance 165.24 14.91

During the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the Company has not surrendered any transaction or disclosed it as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, (such

as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

(This space is intentionally left blank)




GDN Enterprises Private Limited

CIN: U51909DL2010PTC209321

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in T in lakh unless otherwise stated )

6. Other non - current assets

Particulars As af Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Prepaid Lease on security deposits 15.57 -
Advances given azainst Purchase of Property to Related Parties (refer note 27) 4,665.00 1,700.00
Total 4,680.57 1,700.00
7. Inventories*
. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Raw material 6,928.66 20,394.26
Work-in-progress 3,256.91 3,147.95
Finished goods 7.066.03 1,564.51
Total 17.251.60 25,106.72
* At cost and net realisable value, whichever is lower.
All inventories of Company have been hypott d to secure borrowings of the Company (refer note 34).
8 (a). Trade Receivables
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade receivable
- From related parties (refer note 27) 8,964.83 5,212.75
- From others 15.252.31 8,934.23
Total 24,217.14 14,146.98
Break up of Trade Receivables :
l;arficu]ars - ASHI=— As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good 23,495.61 14,146.98
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 760.51 73.47
Trade receivables - credit impaired o — 73.47 -
Total 24.329.59 14,220.45
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk (38.98) (73.47)
Trade receivables - credit impaired 173.47) -
__Total 24,217.14 14,146.98

“ For trade receivables ageing refer note 44
The Company follows “simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
All book debts have been hypothecated to secure borrowings of the Company (refer note 34).

(This space is intentionally left blank)




GDN Enterprises Private Limited

CIN: U51909DL2010PTC209321

Notes to dalone Financial St for the year ended March 31, 2025
{AH amounts in ¥ in lakh unless otherwise stated )

8 (b) Cash & Cash Equivalents*

Particulars FXTT EXE
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balances with banks in current accounts 101.88 2,403.98
Cash in hand 0.03 0.10
Totalk** 101.91 2,404.08
* For the purpose of statement of cash flows, the above has been considered as cash and cash equivalents.
** There are no restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents at the end of reporting period and prior period.
8 (¢) Bank balances other than cash & cash equivalents
Particulars As at st
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Margin money deposits 109.40 -
Total - 109.40 -
8 (d) Loans (Audited)
Particulars Asat pAsrat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Loans to related parties
Loans receivabl idered good - Unsecured - 18.87
- 18.87
Less: provision for doubtful loans = -
Total - 18.87
9. Other Current assets
Pavticulais — - As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Taxes and duties recoverable
Considered good 2,758.64 4,849.85
Less: Provision for doubtful advances 5 -
2,758.64 4,849.85
Advances to suppliers of goods or services to Others 38.53 5145
Advances to suppliers of goods or services to to Related Parties (refer note 27) 250.00 1,311.42
Other Recoverables 2,061.00 -
Duty Paid under Protest 12.76 13.21
Prepaid expenses 23.24 11.53
Advance to employees | 0.10 -
; Unbilled Customer | 624.28 -
Total | 5,768.55 6,237.46

(This space is intentionally left blank)}




GDN Enterprises Private Limited

CIN: U51909DL2010PTC209321

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ in lakh unless otherwise stated )

12. Non-current Borrowings

Particulars Ssiat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Loan from related party - 4,994.41
Term loans - secured

From banks 1,528.65 187.92

Vehicle loans from banks 74.25 -
Less: disclosed as current maturities under short term borrowings [refer note 14 (a)] 353.21 187.92
Total 1,249.69 4,994.41

Notes:
a) Term loans

Term loans from bank are secured by way of first charge on enitre current assets except those exclusively charged to ICICI Bank , and other movable assets excluding vehicles specifically hypothecated
against vehicle loans. The mortgages and charges referred to above are pari-passu among the lenders. (refer note 29-I(A)). The amount disclosed as above is net of Current maturities of long-term debts.

b) Vehicles loans

Vehicle loans were secured by hypothecation of vehicles acquired against such loans (refer note 29 (B) for repayment terms).The amount disclosed as above is net of Current maturities of long-term
debts.. For the current maturities of long-term borrowings, refer note 14 (a) short term borrowings.

13. Provisions

Particulars asat AS. 40
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note *) 11.57 8.48
Total 11.57 8.48
*For disclosures felated to provision for empioyee benefits, j(refer note 35 (b))~
14 (a), Current Borrowings
Particulars As o Ll
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Bills Payables 1,883.12 4,988.96
Current maturities of long-term debts - secured (refer note 12) 353,21 187.92
Total 2,236.33 5,176.88
14 (b) Trade Payables
Particulars . Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
i) Outstanding dues to micro enterprises and Small enterprises (refer note 33) 129.66 37.12
ii) Outstanding dues to other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
—to related parties (refer note 27) 1,440.38 -

— to others 38,906.71 44,544.65
Total 40,476.75 44,581.77
For Trade payable ageing Refer Note 43.

14 (c) Other Current financial liabilities
Particulars AscHt =0
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Security Received 75.36 75.36
Total 75.36 75.36

(This space is intentionally left blank)




GDN Enterprises Private Limited

CIN: U51909DL2010PTC209321
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in ¥ in lakh unless otherwise stated )

15. Other current liabilities
Particulars Avat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advances from customers 56.13 53.63
Taxes and other statutory dues payable 20.93 77.85
Expense payable 17.28 102.46
Staff expense payable 24.12 14.90
Total 118.46 248.84
16. Current provisions
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provision on Unrealised foreign exchange loss 305.32 -
Provision for Audit fees 5.25 4.00
Provision for Interest on statutory liabilities 1.85 0.77
312.42 4.77

(This space is intentionally left blank)




GDN Enterprises Private Limited

CIN: U51909DL2010PTC209321
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in T in lakh unless otherwise stated )

17. Revenue from operations

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sale of Products 99,960.32 44,359.02
Sale of Traded Goods 7,000.23 3,859.58
Sale of Services 1,345.18 550.55
Export Sales 2.22 -
Other Operating Income 2,061.00 -
Unbilled Revenue 624.28 -
Total 1,10,993.23 48,769.14
a. Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated based on nature of products
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from sale of products and services
Finished goods and others
— Routers (ONU/IDU) 99,237.29 44.338.34
—PCBA - 14.18
— Raw Material, Spare parts and Other accessories 7,725.48 3,866.08
Sale of services
— Job Work Charges (PCBA) 1,345.18 550.55
Total 1,08,307.95 48,769.14
Set out below is the revenue from contracts with customers and reconciliation to Statement of Profit and Loss
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,08,307.95 48,769.14
Items not included in disaggregated revenue:
Add: Unbilled Revenue Current Year 624.28 -
Add: Other Operating Income 2,061.00 -
Revenue from operations as per the Statement of Profit and Loss 1,10,993.23 48,769.14
India 1,10,991.01 48,769.14
Outside India 2.22 -
Total Revenue from operations 1,10,993.23 48,769.14
18. Other income
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest from banks and financials institutions 9.06 12.45
Lease equalisation income 1.07 -
Rent Income 6.09 -
Foreign exchange gain 36.97 256.18
Excess liabilities written back 81.99 12.38
Miscellaneous Income 90.59 -
Total 225.77 281.01




GDN Enterprises Private Limited

CIN: U51909DL2010PTC209321
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ in lakh unless otherwise stated )

19. Cost of materials consumed

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventories of raw material at the beginning of the year [Refer note 7] 20,394.26 -
Add: Purchases 83,322.33 62,285.59
Inventories of raw material at the end of the year [Refer note 7] (6,928.66) (20,394.26)
Total 96,787.93 41,891.33
20. Purchases of traded goods
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Purchases of traded goods 6,930.60 3,821.36
Total 6,930.60 3,821.36
21. (Increase)/Decrease in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventories at the beginning of the year [Refer note 7]
Work-in-progress 3,147.95 -
Finished goods __1,564.51 1,470.46
Inventories at the end oﬁhe;eaMT[Refer note 7]
Work-in-progress 3,256.91 3,147.95
Finished goods 7,066.03 1,564.51
Total (5,610.48) (3,242.00)
22. Employee benefits expense
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 216.99 16.49
Gratuity expense [(refer note 35 (b)] 1.90 0.89
Contributions to provident and other funds/scheme* 9.48 0.73
Staff welfare expenses 55.20 -
Total 283.57 18.11

*QOther funds/scheme includes a contribution towards provident fund and Employee State Insurance scheme.

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code') relating to employees' benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent in September
2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The draft rules have been
released by The Ministry of Labour and Employment on November 13, 2020. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record

any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

23. Finance cost

g Year ended Year ended
Particulars

March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024

Borrowing costs 8.62 79.47

Interest on loans 795.33 499.98
Financial charges on Lease, securities and duties 64.84 -

Interest on others* 10.56 0.77

Total 879.35 580.22

*QOthers includes net interest expense on defined benefit plans [Refer note 35 (b)] etc.

( This space is intentionally left blank)
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24. Depreciation and amortization expense

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment [(Refer Note- 3] 481.29 205.93
Depreciation on Right to use Assets (Refer Note- 28) 80.35 -
Total 561.64 205.93
25. Other expenses
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Manufacturing Expenses
Job Work Expenses 4,418.34 2,721.21
Contractor Employee's Expenses 616.10 136.47
House Keeping Expenses 5.05 -
Technical testing fees 1.05 -
Rent 172.08 4.79
Jigs and Fixtures 11.21 -
Consumables 215.51 439.81
Production Compensation Claim - 1,203.52
Others
Communication expenses 0.06 -
Travelling and conveyance expenses 8.41 4.78
Insurance expenses 33.62 10.36
Rates and taxes 86.92 15.97
Directors sitting fee 0.60 -
Unrealised foreign exchange loss 305.32 -
Advances written off 18.87 -
Expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables (refer note 8 (a)) 38.98 -142.56
Legal & Professional expenses 40.09 29.05
Freight and cartage outward expenses 9.95 37.33
Printing and stationery expenses 0.39 0.10
Repair and maintenance expenses (Plant and Machinery) 1.78 0.68
Repair and maintenance expenses (Others) 18.16 -
Security expenses 15.09 3.66
Office expenses - 1.03
Auditor's Remuneration (refer note below)* 5.75 5.75
CSR Expenditure (refer note 39) 6.17 -
Roc Fees 0.25 -
Miscellaneous expenses 11.53 0.36
Clearing and forwarding charges 80.52 83.95
Total 6,121.80 4,560.26

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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* Auditor's Remuneration
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

As Auditors:

Statutory Audit fee 3.00 3.00
Tax Audit fee 2.00 2.00
Limited Review 0.75 0.75
Total 5.75 5.75

26. Earning per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equityholders by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during
the year. Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equityholders by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the
year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the potential dilutive Equity shares into Equity shares. The following

reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

) Year ended Year ended
Particulars

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company: 4,757.80 1,097.67
Number of weighted average equity shares (Nominal value of T 10 each) 34,74,112.50 25,10,000.00
Earnings per share- after exceptional items and tax
- Basic — 136.95 43.73
- Diluted 136.95 43.73

The company do not have any outstanding dilutive potential instruments as on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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GDN Enterprises Private Limited

CIN: U51909DL2010PTC209321

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in X in lakh unless otherwise stated )

28. Leases

The Company’s lease asset primarily consist of finance leases for factory having the various lease terms.The lease arrangements provide for
cancellation by either party and also contain a clause for renewal of the lease agreement. If any, Payment made towards short term leases of
low value assets (lease of assets worth less than Rs. 2 Lacs) other than building and warehouse are recognized in the statement of Profit and

Loss as rental expenses over the tenure of such leases.

Following is carrying value of right of use assets and the movements thereof :

. Lease hold Building Total
particulars INR in Lakhs INR in Lakhs
Balance as at 1st April 2023 - -
Additions il -
Depreciation J -
Balance as at 1st April 2024 - -
Additions 871.80 871.80
Depreciation R0.35 80.35
Balance as at 31st March 2025 791.45 791.45

~The following is the carvying value of lease liability and movement thereof:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning - -
Additions 861.18 -
Accretion of interest 63.25 -
Payment of lease liabilities 103.30 -
Balance at the end 821.13 -
Considering the lease term of the leases, the effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 9%
The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities is as follows
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current lease liabilities 52.18 -
Non-Current lease liabilities 768.95 -
Total 821.13 -
The following are the amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation expense of right of use assets 80.35 -
Interest expense on lease liabilities 63.25 -
Total 143.60 -
Notes:

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the

obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

For maturity analysis of lease liability, [(refer note 31(C)] Financial risk management framework and policies under maturities of

financial liabilities.

There are no leases having variable lease payments. The Company has not entered into any residual value contracts during the year.

There are no sale and leaseback transactions dyring the year

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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29, Details Of Long Term Borrowings (Including Current Maturities) As At March 31, 2025

Particulars Long Term Borrowings| Current maturities of long term borrowings Total Lonig term
borrowings
Term loans from banks (for details Refer (A) below) 1,188.95 339.70 1,528.65
Vehicle Loan from Bank (for details Refer (B) below) 60.74 13.51 74.25
Carrving value of term loans from banks 1.249.69 353.21 1.602.90
A. Term loans from banks:
Asat Remaining tenure of
S.No. Nature of Loan March 31, 2025 Nature of Securities g
repayment
Non Current Current
Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on 54  equal monthly
1 Term Loan from Bank 488.95 139.70 |current assets instalments ending in
October 2029.
Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on 54  equal monthly
2 Term Loan from Bank 700.00 200.00 |current assets instalments ending in
October 2029,
Total 1.188.95 339.70
"7 B. Vehicle loans from b;ui;;:
S.No. Nature of Loan Asat Nature of Securities Remaining tenure of
Non Current Current repayment
. ’ . 57 equal monthly
1 Vehicle Loan 60.74 13.51 :’eeh}:‘;l:s ;‘:“:‘]Ze‘ze;eaif;“:‘fh tl’gali‘syp“he““"“ o stalments ending in
4 5 November 2029.
Total 60.74 13.51

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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30. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparatlon of the company's fi ial i to make jud i and ptions that affect the reported amounts if revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
p 1 and the discl of contmgem liabilities. Uncetainities about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of

assets or habxlmes affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the ised in the fi ial

Taxes
Significant judgements are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax asset/liability at the end of each reporting period. The policy for the same is explained in Note No. 2.2.13

Useful life of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods. The policy for the same
is explained in Note No. 2.2.4

Provisions and contingent liabilities
A provision is r ised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event if it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable

estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and p d at ) are not di d to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the

balamc sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the cwrrent best esitmates. Contingent liabilities are not d in fi ial A i asset is neither
d nor disclosed in the fi ial

Defined Benefit Plans {Gratuity Benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ

from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a

defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions, All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate, In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies

consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based

on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note No. 35(b).

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of fi assets and financial Jiabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on guoted prices in

including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of j is required in blishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. Carrying value and
approximate fair values of financial instruments are same.

st ‘hni

ive markets; their fair value-is measured vsing
q

31. Financial risk management objectives and policies
Financial Risk Management Framework

The Company’s senior management oversees the risk management framework and monitoring the Company’s risk The risk ensure timely identification and evaluation of risks, setting
acceptable risk thresholds, identifying and mapping controls against these risks, monitor the risks and their limits, improve risk awareness and transparency. Risk management systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in the market conditions and the Company’s activities to provide reliable information to the Management and the Board to eval the adequacy of the risk k in relation to the
risk faced by the Company.

The risk management aims to mitigate the following risks arising from the financial instruments:
— Market risk

— Credit risk

— Liquidity risk

A. Credit risk

Credit risk arises when a counterparty defaults on its | obligations to pay resuiting in fi ial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties
and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to Rs. 24,217.14 lakhs and Rs. 14,146.98 lakhs as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,
respectively. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. Credit risk has always been managed by the Company through credit approvals,
establishing credit Jimits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

The following table gives details in respect of percentage of revenues fenerated from top one customer and top five S
Particulars Year ended Year ended|
March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024_

Revenue from top customer (%) 87.44% 80.37%
Revenue from top five customers (%) 95.63% 98.88%|
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Credit Risk Exposure
The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected loss allowance for trade receivables based on historical credit loss experience and adjustments for forward looking information

For Trade receivables ageing refer note 44
The allowance for lifetime expected credit loss on customer balances for the year ended March 31, 2025 was Rs.112.45 Lakhs (Previous year Rs.73.47 Lakhs).

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning 73.47 73.47
Expected credit loss recognised 38.98 -
Bal at the end 11245 73.47

The provision for loss allowances of trade receivables have been made by the management on the evaluation of trade receivables. The management at each reporting period made an assessment on recoverability of
balances and on the best estimate basis the provision for loss allowances have been created,

B. Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: currency risk and interest rate risk.
Financial instruments affected by market risk includes loan and borrowings, lease liabilities. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exp within ptable p

while optimising the return. All such transactions are carried out within the guidelines set by the Board of Directors and Risk Management Committee.

There has been no significant changes to the Company’s exposure to market risk or-the methods in which they are managed or measured.

I- Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign
currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. The Company’s exposure to curtency risk relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities when transactions are denominated in a
different currency from the Company’s functional currency.

Fereign currency rate sensitivity
The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows.

The foreign currency risks from financial instruments as of March 31, 2025 were as follows :

. Amount in foreign Amount in INR
L — currency {in Lz!(is! =i {Lakhs}
Trade Payables

usD 320.61 27,438.10
JPY 813.37 464.35
The foreign currency risks from ial instruments as of March 31, 2024 were as follows :
Particulars Amount in foreign Amount in INR
currency (in Lakhs) (Lakhs)
Trade Payables
UsD 400.75 33412.21
JPY 1.197.00 659.79

II- Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debt obligations with floating interest rates. The borrowings as at March 31, 2024 is Rs. 6,838.96 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 2,417.14 Lakhs) which are interest
bearing and interest rates are variable.

C. Liquidity risk

a. Liquidity risk refers to the risk of fi ial distress or dinary high fi ing costs arising due to shortage of liquid funds in a situation where busi conditions p dly deteriorate and requiring
financing. The Company requires funds both for short term operational needs as well as for long term capital expenditure growth projects. The Company generates sufficient cash flow for operations, which
together with the available cash and cash equivalents and short term investments provide liquidity in the short-term and long-term. The Company has established an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Company’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

b. “The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.

The tables include principal cash flows, The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.
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Maturities of financial liabilities

As at March 31, 2025

Particulars Less than 12 Months | More than 12 Months Total Carrying Value
Long term borrowings - 1,249.69 1,249.69 1,249.69
Short term borrowings including current maturities of long term debt 2,236.33 - 2,236.33 2,236.33
Trade payables 40,476.75 - 40,476.75 40,476.75
Lease liability 52.18 768.95 821.13 821.13
Other fi ial liabilities 75.36 - 75.36 75.36
As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Less than 12 Months | More than 12 Months Total Carrying Value
Long term borrowings - 4,994 41 4,994 41 4,994.41
Short term borrowings including current maturities of long term debt 5,176.88 - 5,176.88 5,176.88
Trade payables 44,581.77 - 44,581.77 44,581.77
Other financial liabilities 7536 - 75.36 75.36

The following table details the Company’s expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including
interest that will be earned on those assets. The inclusion of information on non-derivative financial assets is necessary in order to understand the Company’s liquidity risk management as the liquidity is managed

on a net asset and liability basis.

Maturities of financial assets

As at March 31, 2025
Particulars Less than 12 Months | More than 12 Months Total Carrying Value
Other financial assets - 110.90 110.90 110.90
Trade receivables 24217.14 - 24,217.14 24,217.14
Cash and cash equivalents 101.91 - 101.91 101.91
Bank bal other than cash and cash equivalent | 109.40 - 109.40 109.40
As at March 31, 2024

!-Less than 12 Months - | - More thaz 12 Months- Total Carryiag Value
Other financial assets - 185.94 185.94 185.94
Trade receivables | 14,146.98 - 14,146.98 14,146.98
Cash and cash equivalents | 2,404.09 - 2,404.09 2,404.09
Loans 18.87 - 18.87 18.87

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of
the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in ditions and the req of the fi al .The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company’s aim is to keep the gearing ratio between 20% and 40%. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade
and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations.

The Company monitors its capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided to total equity. Net debt includes, interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and current investments

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024

Net Debt
a. Borrowings*
— Non current 1,249.69 4,994.41
— Current (including current maturities of long term debt) 2,236.33 5,176.88
b. Cash and cash equivalents 101.91 2,404.09
Net Debt/(Surplus) 3,384.11 7,767.20
Total Equity 10,466.61 (2,797.19)
Net Debt te Equity Ratio 0.32 2.78)

*Excluding Lease liabilities

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets fi
capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the fi ial co
bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

ial s hed to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define
of any interest:

(This space is intentionally left blank)

Delhi
&
Yed AccO>




GDN Enterprises Private Limited

CIN: U51909DL2010PTC209321

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ in lakh unless otherwise stated )

32, Segment Reporting

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) comprises of the Board of Directors which examines the Company’s performance on the basis of single operating segment Electronics Goods. Accordingly segment

disclosure has not been made.

33.Di es Reguired Under Section 22 Of The Micre, Small And Medium Enterprises Develop: Act, 2006

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year
— Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises* 129.66 37.12
- Interest due on above 1.85 0.77
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year. : h
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006. - -
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. 1.85 0.77
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date. when the interest due as above are actually paid to the small
enterprise for the purpose of disall as a deductible expendi under Section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006 - "
34, Assets pledged/morigag ed/hypothecated as security

Particulars | Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Current
Inventories 17,251.60 25,106.72
Trade receivables 24217.14 14,146.98
Cash and cash equivalents 101.91 2.,404.09
Other bank balances 109.40 -
Loans - RtE ¥
Other current assets 5.768.55 6237.45
Total assets pledzed/mortgaged/hypothecated as security 47.448.60 47.914.11
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35. Emplovee Benefit Obligations

A) Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans

The Company has defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered
provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognised

during the year towards defined contribution plan is as under:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employer’s contribution to Provident Fund 191 0.15
Employer’s contribution to Employee State Insurance 0.01 -
Expense recognised during the year 191 0.15
B) Gratuity
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 |
Current Non-current Current Non-current

Gratuity 11.57 - 8.48 |
Total 11.57 - 8.48 |

A. Disclosure of gratuity

Gratuity is computed as 15 days salary, for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of 6 months and is payable on

ion. The Gratuity plan is governed by the Payment

of Gratunity Act, 1972, Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at
retirement/ termination/resignation. The Company makes provision of such gratuity asset/liability in the books of account on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary.

Reconciliation of opening and closing b

of the present value of the defined benefit obligation

Particulars Year ended Year ended |
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Defined benefit obligation
Balance as at the beginning of the year 0.89 -
Current service cost 1.90 0.89
Interest cost 0.12 -
Remeasurement (gains )/losses in other comprehensive income 1.06
Balance as at the end of the year I 3.98 0.89 |
Total exp r d in profit or loss
. Year ended Year ended |
Partieulars March 31,2025] __ March 31,2024
Current service cost 1.90 0.89 -|
Interest cost 0.12 -
Total 2.03 0.89 |
Other comprehensive (income) / expenses (Remeasurement)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024
Cumulative unrecognized actuarial (gain)/loss opening. B/F 0.89 -
Actuarial (gain)/loss - obligation 0.18
Total Actuarial | ainVloss 0.18
Cumulative total actuarial (gain)/loss. C/F 1.06 -
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Actuarial gain / losses from changes in Demographics assumptions (mortality) Not Applicable Not Applicable
Actuarial (gain)/ losses from changes in financial assumptions - -
Experience Adjustment (zain)/ loss for Plan liabilities 1.06 =
Net remeasurements recognised in OCI 1.06 =
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Financial § for the year ended March 31, 2025

Due to its defined benefit plans, the p is exposed to the foll
Changes in bond yields - A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liability.

Salary risk - The present value of the defined benefit plans liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of the plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the

plar’s liability.

Principal actuarial ptions used as at the end of the reporting period
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rates 7.00 % per annum 7.25 % per annum
Expected rates of salary increase 5.00 % per annum 5.00 % per annum
Attrition Rate 10.00% p.a. 10.00% p.a.
Retirement age 60 Years 60 Years
Sensitivily analysis of the defined benefit obligati
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

a) Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the period

Impact due to increase of 1% 3.7 0.83
Impact due to decrease of 1% 430 0.96
b) Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the period
Impact due to increase of 1% 4.30 0.96
Tmpact due to decrease of 1% 3.70 0.83
C) Impact of the change in withdrawal rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the period
Tmpact due to increase of 1% 3.88 0.87
Impact due to decrease of 1% 4.07 0.91
Reconciliation of liability in Bal Sheet
. Year ended Year ended
Earticulars March 31,2025 | —— March 31, 2024
Opening gross defined benefit liability/ (asset) 0.89
Expenses to be recognized in P&L 2.03 0.89
OCI- Actuarial {gain )/ loss-Total current period 1.06
3.98 0.89

Closing gross defined benefit liability/ (asset)

* The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in acturial valuation are after taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment

* Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for estimated term of the obligations.

¢ The sensitivity analysis above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that change in assumption would occur in isolation of one another as some

» The methods and type of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.
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36, Commitments and contingencies
a. Contingent liabilities

: Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts (refer detailed annexure)
Indirect tax matters 415.01 51.48
Other Litizations 166.53 166.53
s . Year ended Year ended
Particulars Period March31.2025]  March 31,2024
GST Demand 2017-18 367.33 -
Sales Tax 2016-18 47.68 5148
Arbitration/Litigations 2022-23 166.53 166.53

(i) It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolution of the respective proceedings as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements/
decisions pending with various forums/ authorities.

(ii) The company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.

(iii) The Company's pending litigations comprise of claims against the Company pertaining to proceedings pending with various direct tax, indirect tax and other authorities. The company has reviewed all its

pending litigations and p dings and has adequately provided for where provi are required or disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its dalone fi 1 The Company does
not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its standalone financial statements,
37. Fair yalue measurements
a. Break-up of ial instruments carried at amortised costs
M Year ended Year ended
Partieniars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Financial Assets
Measured at amortised cost
Trade receivables 24,217.14 14,146.98
Cash and cash equivalents 101.51 2,404.09
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 109.40 -
Loans - 18.87
Other financial assets
— Non-current 110.90 185.94
‘Total = = 24.539.35 16,755.88
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Borrowings
— Non current 1,249.69 4,994.41
— Current (including current maturities of long term borrowings) 2,236.33 5,176.88
Trade payables 40,476.75 44,581.77
Other financial liabilities 75.36 75.36
Lease Liabilities
— Non-current 768.95 =
— Current 52.18 =
Total il 44859 54.828 |

Carrying value and approximate fair values of financial instruments are same.
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes in to account the characteristics of the asset or Hability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level It includes fi ial instruments d using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, traded bonds, ETFs and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments
(including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.,
Level II: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for le, traded bonds, the counter derivatives) is determined using valuati hni which imize the use of

observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates, If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level I If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and
ind ification asset are included in level 3. The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivabies, trade payables, bank overdrafts and other current liabilities approximate their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: '

i. Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, individual creditworthiness of the customer
and the risk characteristics of the financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected credit losses of these receivables.

ii. The fair values of the quoted notes and bonds are based on price quotations at the reporting date. The fair value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities, obligations under finance
leases, as well as other non-current fi ial liabilities is esti d by di ing future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. In addition to
being sensitive to a reasonably possible change in the forecast cash flows or the discount rate, the fair value of the equity instruments is also sensitive to a reasonably possible change in the growth rates. The
valuation requires management to use Unobservable inputs in the model, of which the significant unobservable inputs are disclosed in the tables below. M regularly a range of reasonably
possible alternatives for those significant unobservable inputs and determines their impact on the total fair value

iiil. The fair values of the remaining fair value through other comprehensive income “FVTOCI” financial assets are derived from quoted market prices in active markets.

38. The Code on Social Security, 2020 {Code] relating to emplovee bepefits,
The Code on Social Security, 2020 ("Code") relating to employee benefits during employ and post employ benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the
Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/ interpretation have not yet been issued. The company will assess the impact of the Code when
it comes into effect and wili record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective. - == =

39. Corporate Social Responsibility

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of average net profit of the i diately pi ding three fi ial year on Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR') activities. The nature of CSR activities identified are eradication of hunger and malnuttition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation and
environment sustainability. The Company has formed a CSR committee as per the Act.

il The amount spent by the Company on CSR activates is as below:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Gross amount reduired to be spent by the Company 6.17 LI |
Total 6.17 -
Amount spent by the company
Expenditure/payments
Vision Foundation 6.17 -
Total expenditure 6.17 -
Shortfall at the end of the year - -
There is no payment made to related parties
i) Details of CSR expenditure under section 135(5) of the Act in respect of other than ongoing projects R
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance as at the beginning of the year - -
Amount required to be spent during the period 6.17 -
Amount deposited in a specified fund of Schedule VIT of the Act with in 6 months - -
Amount spent during the year 6.17 -
Shortfall/iexcess) as at the closing of the year - -
{iii} Details of excess CSR expenditure under section 135(5) of the Act
. Year ended Year ended
Fardenlars March31.2025]  March 31,2024
Balance excess spent as at the beginning of the year - -
Amount required to be spent during the period - -
Amount spent during the year - -
Shortfall/{excess| as at the closing of the year - -
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40. Production Linked Incentive {FLIT} Scheme to promote Telecom And Networking Products Manufacturing in India:

The Ministry of Communications issued a gazette Notification No. CG-DL-E-24022021-225442 on 24 February, 2021 to introduce a Production Linked I ive Scheme (PLI) to encourage the manufacturing of Telecom & Networking
products in India. GDN Enterprises Private Limited (‘the Company’} applied for the scheme and received approval on 14 Oct, 2021. The scheme is applicable from FY 2021-2022 to FY 2025-2026, and the company is eligible to receive
a certain percentage of sales of eligible products as incentives during this period.

In FY 2022-2023, the scheme was revised through an office memorandum dated 20 June, 2022 to introduce a shift of base year was offered to the appli ip and the comp: lied for the scheme. The approval for the same
was granted on 31 October, 2022. The new scheme is applicable for the period FY 2022-2023 to FY 2026-2027.

The Company has met the investment and revenue thresholds for the FY 2024-25 of Rs. 32.20 crores and Rs. 547.40 crores respectively and is eligible to claim incentive from government under the aforesiad scheme.”

Note 41: Additional Statutory Information

(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property

(ii) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(iii} The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period

{iv) The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.

{v) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the I diary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(vi) The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall :
{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(vii) The company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,

1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

(viii) The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(ix) The company does not have any scheme of arrangements which have been approved by the competent authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Act,

(x) The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under Section 2(87) of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on Number of Layers) Rules, 2017,
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42. Ratios
Ratio Numerator Denominator March 31, 2025 March 31, 2624 (‘l:naﬁ;l Reason for Variance
ge {
Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 1.08 0.95 13% Not Material
Debt- Equity Ratio Total debt (excluding Jease liabilities) Total equity 0.33 (3.64) -109% | Due to retained earning
i . . i o
Debi service coverage ratio Net operating Income Total debt Service 17.08 9.19 86% Due to increase in the current year profit
Tnventory tumover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 463 320 45% | Due to increase in the average inventory
Trade receivable tumover ratio | Net sales Average accounts receivable 579 6.33 -9% | Not Material
Trade payable turnover Ratio Net purchases Average trade payables 212 2.79 -24%| Not Material
Retum on capital employed  |Earnings before interest and taxes ﬁ:{)’;ﬁ:};’“""’yﬁ sl 049 0.81 40% | Due to increase in the current year profit
Return on Equity ratio Profit after tax Averagé Total equity 045 {0.39)] -216% | Due 10 increase in the current year profit
INet capital tumover Ratio Net sales ::Z‘l:ll?:i capital = Current assets — current 3053 (21.54) -242%| Due to increase in the current year Net Sales
Return on Investment Earnings before interest and tax Total Assets 0.11 0.03 218%| Due to increase in the current year profit
Net profit ratio Profit after tax Net sales = total sales - sales return 0.04 0.02 0% N .
Due to increase in the current year profit
() Working of the ratios
Basis of Ratios March 31. 2025 Ratio March 31, 2024 Ratio
a. Current ratio
Current assets 47,448.60 108 47,914.10 0.95
Cuirent liability 43,813.33 50,178.51
b. Debt Equity ratio
e Total debt {see note i) ————— 3,486.02 033 10,171.2% (3.64)
Total equity (Equity share capitalt other equity} 10,466.61 (2,797.19)
c. Debt service coverage ratio
Net operating income (Profit after tax+Finance cost+Depreciation and amortisation expenses) 6,199.85 17.08 1,883.82 9.19
Total debt service (Long term debt+Short term debt) 363.00 205
d. Inventory turnover ratio
Cost of goods sold 98,108.05 4.63 42,470.69 3.20
Average Tnventory = (Opening stock + Closing stock) / 2 21,179.16 13,288.59
e. Trade receivables turnover ratio
Net sales (Total sales - Sales returm) 1,10,993.23 5.79 48,769.14 6.33
Average trade receivables = (Opening debtors +Closing debtors) / 2 19,182.06 7,702.37
1. Trade payables turnover ratio
Total purchases (Net of purchase return) 99,252.93 212 66,106.95 279
Average trade payables = (Opening creditors + Closing creditors) / 2 42,529.26 23,726.38
g. Net capital turnover ratio
Net sales (Total sales - Sales return) 1,10,993.23 30.53 48,769.14 (21.54)
‘Working capital = Cutrent assets - Current liabilities 3,635.27 (2,264.41)
h. Net profit ratio
Profit after tax 4,758.86 0.04 1,097.67 0.02
Net sales (Total sales - Sales return) 1,10,593.23 48,769.14
i. Return on equity ratio
Profit after tax 4,758.86 045 1,097.67 | (0.39)
Total equity (Equity share capital+ other equity) 10.466.61 (2,797.19)
j. Return on Capital Employed
Eamings before interest and tax 6,143.94 0.49 1,795.18 0.81
Capital employed = Total assets - Cutrent liabilities 12,496.84 2,205.71
k. Return on investment
Eamings before interest and tax 6,143.94 0.11 1,795.18 | 0.03
Total Assets 56,310.17 52384.22 |
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in ¥ in lakh unless otherwise stated )

43. Trade Payables Ageing

As at March 31, 2025
Particulars Outstanding for the foltowing periods from due date of payment
Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME 129.57 0.09 . - 129.66
(ii) Others - 38,378.11 1,602.56 347.38 19.05 40,347.10
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - -
1iv) Disputed dues - Others - - | - - -
= 38.507.69 1,602.65 347.38 19.05 40.476.76
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars O for the following periods from due date of payment
Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 vears Total
(i) MSME - 37.01 0.12 - 37.12
(ii) Others - 43,548.34 905.96 0.10 90.25 44,544 65
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
1ivi Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
43.585.35 906.08 6.10 90.25 44,581.77
Notes:
» The amounts are unsecured and non - interest bearing and are usually on varying trade terms.
« Tdentification of Micro and Small Enterprises is on the basis of intimation received from vendors.
44. Trade Receivable Ageing
As at March 31, 2025
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6
‘months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed Trade recei - consi good 23.495.61 704.41 17.12 - . 24.217.14
(ii) Undi: Trade i - which have signi increase in credit risk -
(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - -
23,495.61 704.41 17.12 - - 24.217.14
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars ——— EE— Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6
months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) Undi Trade i - it good 13.672.19 398.38 294 - - 14,073.51
(i} Undi Trade i - which have signi increase in credit risk . - - . -
(iif) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - - 73.47 73.47
13,672.1% 398.38 294 - 7347 14,146.98
45, The figures have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs of rupees. The figure 0.00 wherever stated represents value less than X 50,000/-
46. There are no subsequent event observed after the reporting period which have material impact on the Company's operation
47, Figures for the previous year have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary to conform to the current yeat's presentation.
48. Note No.1 to 48 form integral part of the Standalone Balance Sheet and Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.
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